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If you do not answer a question, please state your reason(s) for not doing so. Alternatives will be considered but only granted when in the best interests of the State. Offerors are cautioned that failure to respond in full to all questions will affect the evaluation of the offeror’s proposal.
This RFP sets forth the terms and conditions under which the State wishes to purchase medical benefit administration services for its employees/retirees. Your written proposal will be your offer to provide the requested services.
Proposals will be scored based on each answer provided within the questionnaire or explanation document. Do not refer to vendor provided attachments in response to the questions. Responses should reflect data specific to the market(s) to which you are responding. Do not default to nationally collected data or statistics unless the information or processes are identical. YOU MUST CLEARLY IDENTIFY ANY QUALIFICATIONS OR CONTINGENCIES ON YOUR PROPOSED FEES, PLAN DESIGN, AND PERFORMANCE GUARANTEES. Failure to do so could result in disqualification.
The electronic copy of your proposal should be provided in MS Word (and not in a PDF). Bidders are not permitted to alter and/or redline the state’s language and/or format. Any proposals received with alterations and/or redlines, may be grounds for disqualification.
The Word version of the Appendices includes check boxes that are not formatted to be checked. The bidder should replace these boxes with an “X” to indicate their response.
A. Administrative, Member, & Claim Paying Services
1. Which sales office would handle the general servicing of the State? How long has it been operational? What types of services does it provide?
2. What are the standard office hours for the sales and service office?
3. Indicate if the following resources will be designated (have other clients) or dedicated (have no other clients other than the State). If designated, indicate estimated percentage of time that will be allocated to the State. The contract with the State will specify the vendor is responsible for maintaining the dedicated and/or level of designated client team members indicated in the chart below. 
	

	Response
(Dedicated / Designated and Percent)*

	a. Strategic Account Manager**
	

	b. Client Services Manager**
	

	c. Implementation Manager
	

	d. Wellness Coordinator
	

	e. Financial Analyst
	

	f. Call Center Service Manager
	

	*	Dedicated or designated with the majority of time allocated to the State is preferred.
**	The State expects that the Strategic Account Manager and the Client Services Manager (i.e., client team leads) will either be Dedicated or Designated with close to 100% of their time allocated to the State. 




4. Please provide the following information regarding the proposed account team:
	
	Name of Team Member
	Location
	Years of Carrier Experience
	Number of Assigned Accounts

	a. Strategic Account Manager
	
	
	
	

	b. Client Services Manager
	
	
	
	

	c. Implementation Manager
	
	
	
	

	d. Wellness Coordinator
	
	
	
	


5. Please provide the Book-of-Business Turnover Rate for the following divisions:
	
	CY 2018 (Percent)

	a. Overall Book-of-Business
	

	b. Strategic Account Managers
	

	c. Client Services Managers
	

	d. Implementation Manager
	

	e. Wellness Coordinator
	


6. Confirm that account management personnel, as needed, will be available during regular business hours and during emergencies including being available for frequent telephone and on-site consultation with the State.
7. For the customer service center proposed for the State provide the following for 2017:
a.	Percent of calls abandoned
b.	Percent of calls handled by live representative
c.	Number of seconds to reach a live customer service representative
8. Do you have a formal training process for customer service reps? Please describe.
9. Do customer service reps have online access to real time claim processing information?
10. Do customer service reps have authority to approve claims?
11. Check all items below which pertain to calls handled by the customer service representatives:
· All calls are recorded
· CSRs document all calls
· CSRs can make adjustments to claims during a call
· Calls are documented verbatim
· Calls are documented in summarization
12. Do you offer clients online access to information and services via the Internet or through CRT interface?
13. If yes, what information is accessible that is included in your financial cost proposal?
14. Can your organization send recovery letters to members who continue to use their medical card after their termination? Provide a description of your recovery process for claims incurred by members who continue to use their medical ID card after their termination.
15. Do you survey clients annually regarding program administration satisfaction? 
If yes, provide most recent aggregate results.
16. How many toll free numbers are available to the State and its members to handle claims or other member service issues?
17. What hours will the telephone lines be staffed? Please indicate if you are able to offer staffed hours on one or both weekend days and the proposed hours. Also, indicate if there is an additional cost to weekend hours in your response to the Financial Section. 
18. Do you currently perform membership satisfaction surveys? Provide a copy of the latest results of the survey. What percent of members indicated that they were “satisfied or very satisfied” with the overall program?
19. Describe the escalation process for Member Service satisfaction and complaints.
20. Will you provide a quarterly summary of the types of member services calls received, including resolutions for reoccurring issues?
21. Do you provide member support services for selecting and/or locating network providers?
22. Please describe how your organization will assist the State in marketing how employees can get the most of their medical benefits. The described services must be included in your quoted administrative fees. 
23. If requested by the State, are you willing and able to work with the State to customize messaging on point of sale EOB’s specific to the State’s plans?
24. How are out-of-network claims processed?
25. Do you have a program available for subscribers who may have dependents living out of state temporarily or permanently? Describe program and how claims incurred are processed, including claims pricing. Provide the details of how the benefits are administered (in- versus out-of-network) and how the claims are priced/discounted for dependents of subscribers in situations when the dependents live out of state.
26. Confirm you have capabilities to handle the State’s open enrollment function and ongoing bi-weekly eligibility changes for medical and other (e.g., dental and vision) benefits. Any additional costs for online enrollment services must be separately quoted on the administrative fee exhibits.
ASO Banking/Claim Reimbursement Arrangements
27. At the State’s direction, are you able to accommodate a financial arrangement where either: (1) the State is invoiced on a weekly basis for the prior week of claims, or (2) you maintain an advance deposit for paying claims that would be replenished on a weekly basis? Confirm you agree to either of these arrangements at the State’s direction.
28. Confirm you will invoice the State on a monthly basis for administrative costs for the prior month.
29. Confirm that no penalties or interest will be charged to the State for late funding or late payment.
HIPAA Compliance
30. Confirm that your organization will comply with all HIPAA regulations and that you provide, upon request, supporting documentation outlining your organizations HIPAA policies and procedures as they relate to management of the medical benefit plan for the State.
31. Confirm that your organization is compliant with the Electronic Data Interchange (“EDI”) Privacy and Security rules of the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (“HIPAA”), and will execute the appropriate Business Associate Agreement (“BAA”) as provided by the State.
COBRA & Self-Pay Administration
32. Currently, the State’s medical benefits administrator provides its COBRA administrative services for medical, prescription drug, vision, and dental benefits. It sends weekly eligibility files to the State’s prescription drug, vision, and dental administrators for eligibility maintenance and claim payment. Vendors receive notification via email about enrollments, changes, and terminations. In addition to weekly eligibility files, the State’s medical benefits administrator sends a quarterly full file to the State’s prescription drug benefits administrator.
33. Confirm you will support the State’s current COBRA procedures as described above.
34. The State has a small population of direct pay participants who pay 100% of the State’s premium rate for medical coverage as though they were active State employees. Historically, this population has been billed by the incumbent medical administrator. Confirm that you will continue to administer this program as indicated.
B. Reporting, IT & Data Integration
1. Indicate for each report noted below whether you can provide such a report at no additional cost. If you can provide the requested report as part of the services included in your financial cost proposal, indicate the frequency the report will be available. 
	Report
	Will this be provided at no additional cost?*
	If yes, indicate frequency
	Will the State have online access to this information?

	a. Eligibility Report which shows accuracy of updates and changes
	· Yes
· No
	Will this be available upon request?
	· Yes
· No

	b. Paid Claims Summary (by plan and by subgroups)
	· Yes
· No
	
	· Yes
· No

	c. Detail Claim Listing (Utilization by individual claim, listing the provider information, submitted charge, allowable charge, paid)
	· Yes
· No
	
	· Yes
· No

	d. Cost Sharing Report (Amounts determined to be ineligible, amounts applied to copays and coinsurance, and amounts adjusted for COB)
	· Yes
· No
	
	· Yes
· No

	e. Detailed Utilization Report
	· Yes
· No
	
	· Yes
· No

	f. High Amount Claimant Report
	· Yes
· No
	
	· Yes
· No

	g. Ad-Hoc Utilization Reports
	· Yes
· No
	Will this be available upon request?
	· Yes
· No

	h. Reporting to support the State’s Rewards for Wellness Program Calendar
	· Yes
· No
	See the State’s Program Calendar
	· Yes
· No

	i. Health Management Reports (disease management, case management, gaps in care)
	· Yes
· No
	
	· Yes
· No

	j. Detailed Claims Files for data analytics
	· Yes
· No
	Monthly
	· Yes
· No

	k. Reporting for the purpose of tracking combined medical and prescription drug plan provisions (e.g., deductibles and out-of-pocket maximums)
	· Yes
· No
	Weekly
	· Yes
· No


*	If applicable, indicate any costs associated with these reports in your response to the financial section. Describe any other claim/management reports you would be able to supply to the State or its designee regularly at no additional charge and the frequency with which they could be provided. Please provide sample reports.
2. Describe any other reports either Clinical or Financial in nature that would be provided to the State or its designee in order to help manage benefit costs. Please provide sample reports.
3. Describe in detail any programs designed to integrate medical and pharmacy data in order to create patient management and cost savings opportunities.
4. On average, what percentage of all claims are audited by your internal audit group?
5. Are audits performed on a pre- or post-disbursement basis?
· Pre-Disbursement
· Post-Disbursement
· Both
6. Would there be a charge to the State for the required independent audit performed of your claim operation?
· No
· Yes
7. Explain your Coordination of Benefits (COB) procedures.
A)	Do you pursue COB prospectively or retrospectively to payments? 
· Prospectively
· Retrospectively
B) 	How often are records updated for new information on other coverage? Please describe how this data is gathered.
8. Please complete the following table of fraud detection programs:
	Task
	Formal Written Program
	If yes, provide total # of events per 1000 covered lives)
	Describe Program

	A. Ineligible Claimant 
	· Yes
· No
	
	

	B. Assure that service billed is actually rendered
	· Yes
· No
	
	

	C. Over billings
	· Yes
· No
	
	



9. Do you retain medical consultants for the review of any unusual claims or charges?
· Yes
· No
If yes, explain the method in which such consultants are used and describe their qualifications, any affiliations and how they are compensated.
10. How do you reimburse multiple surgical procedures being performed during one operation?
Is a reduced scale used for the 1st and subsequent procedures? (Check only one)
· Yes
· No
11. How are claims, customer service, case management, utilization review and case management systems linked? (Check only one)
· Same system
· Integrated, but different systems
· Different systems, but accessible to all
· Not linked
· Some linked
· Other, please specify:
12. Does your claims system have the capability to automatically match claims with utilization management information both in- and out-of-network?
· Yes
· No
13. Do you have an automatic audit process for large claims?
· Yes
· No
Indicate how you define a large claim and provide detail of the audit review process.


14. Do you have electronic capabilities to administer eligibility for the State, including providing eligibility files and reporting, and coordinate with other carriers (e.g., prescription drug, dental, vision) on eligibility and enrollment? If there is an additional fee associated with providing these services, please indicate it in your response to the financial section of this RFP.
· Yes
· No
Claims and Appeals 
15. Do you have a formal written appeal/grievance/reconsideration process for both self-funded and fully insured plans? (Check only one)
· Yes
· No
If yes, please describe these processes, including how the appeal providers are chosen, who is retained for external appeals and what the turnaround time is from the time an appeal is submitted to when a decision on the appeal is reached.
16. Is there information regarding the option for an appeal, the timeframe, and the mailing address and all other information required by ACA claims and appeal rules in either the body of or attached to all claim and appeal notification letters? (Check only one)
· Yes
· No
17. Have your claims and/or UR staff been educated and trained on how to process claims and/ or pre-certification review under the new ACA guidelines? (Check only one)
· Yes
· No
18. Are you fully compliant with ACA claims and appeals regulations? (Check only one)
· Yes
· No
19. Are there any differences between your fully insured and self-funded claims processing systems? (Check only one)
· Yes
· No
20. Who is the fiduciary? Who is responsible for the second level of appeal?


C. Health Management Programs
Utilization Management
1. If your contracted physician requested that a Pap smear be evaluated by the following techniques, which ones would be considered payable under your organization? (Check all that apply)
· a.	ThinPrep
· b.	PapNet
· c.	AutoPap
· d.	Other device to perform Pap smear evaluation (List):					
· e.	None of the above or unknown.
2. The National Institute of Health has classified the following services as Alternative Medicine practices. These practices are currently under NIH investigation to determine efficacy. Indicate whether any of the following services, when requested by enrollees are commonly considered eligible expenses by your organization. (Check all that apply)
· a.	Homeopathic services
· b.	Naturopathic services
· c.	Biofeedback
· d.	Herbal medicine
· e.	Chiropractic/spinal manipulation
· f.	Acupuncture
· g.	Acupressure
· h.	Yoga
· i.	Therapeutic massage
· j.	Rolfing
· k.	Trager/Feldenkrais manual healing techniques
· l.	Ayurvedic medicine
· m.	Nutritional therapy: macrobiotics, megavitamin
· n.	None of the above.
· o.	Other:							
3. How long has your organization been performing Utilization Management services? (Check only one)
· a.	Less than 1 year
· b.	1-3 years
· c.	4-6 years
· d.	7-9 years
· e.	10 or more years


4. Are your services local, national, or international? (Check only one)
· a.	Local only
· b.	National, some states*
· c.	National, all states
· d.	National, all states plus international
* Indicate the states you SERVE or DO NOT SERVE (whichever is shorter).
											
5. Are there any specific reporting or administrative procedures you would require of the State prior to implementation of your program?
· a.	Yes, explain: 								
· b.	No
6. Complete the grid to indicate the number of physicians (MD, DO) ROUTINELY available to your organization to assist in review.
	
	Full Time
	Part Time

	A.	Number of physicians on staff in your Utilization Review office
	
	

	B.	Number of physicians retained as consultants to review as needed 
	
	


7. Would you be agreeable to a periodic (e.g., twice a year) “round table” meeting with the State, Utilization Management firm, claims payor and consulting organization to discuss both positive and negative areas of the working relationship? (Check only one)
· a.	Yes, cost included in fees
· b.	No
8. If medical records are needed and a facility/provider charges your Utilization Management firm for the photocopy/postage expense, who pays that bill? (Check only one)
· a.	Utilization Management firm absorbs cost.
· b.	Patient
· c.	Employer/State
9. Does your Utilization Management firm subcontract for any portion of the following? (Complete all rows)
	Service
	Yes
	To Whom
	No
	Service Not Available

	a. Preservice review
	
	
	
	

	b. Concurrent review
	
	
	
	

	c. Discharge planning
	
	
	
	

	d. Psychiatric/substance abuse review
	
	
	
	

	e. Case management
	
	
	
	

	f. Bill audits
	
	
	
	

	g. Coding (ICD/DRG)
	
	
	
	

	h. Data entry
	
	
	
	

	i. Computer programming
	
	
	
	

	j. Physician advisor review
	
	
	
	

	k. HIPAA EDI services
	
	
	
	


10. Do you have educational material, which informs enrollees regarding your U.R. services and procedures? (Check only one)
· a.	Yes, available for the State at no added cost
· b.	No, but can develop at no added cost
· c.	No, not available
11. Is your firm willing to assist the State if a dispute arises over payment/ nonpayment for health care services which your firm recommended were not medically necessary, appropriate and/or reasonable? (Check only one)
· a.	Yes, within our proposed fees
· b.	No, explain: 									
12. Does your utilization management firm have any affiliations with other business entities?
· a.	No
· b.	Yes, explain the nature of these affiliations: 					
Preservice Review
13. Indicate which services are reviewed under your preservice (precertification) review program (Check all applicable to your program):
· a.	Elective inpatient medical/surgical admissions
· b.	Elective outpatient surgery
· c.	Diagnostic services
· d.	Durable medical equipment
· e.	Corrective appliances/prosthetics
· f.	Skilled nursing facility
· g.	Home health/home enteral/parental therapy
· h.	Musculoskeletal services (e.g., chiropractic)
· i.	Medical services (e.g., physical therapy, Dr’s office visits)
· j.	Psychiatric admissions (acute and residential)
· k.	Psychiatric outpatient therapy services
· l.	Substance abuse (e.g., detoxification, rehabilitation)
· m.	Other:										
· n.	No preservice review offered 
14. Precertification includes analysis and determination of which of the following (may check more than one):
· a.	Appropriate Level of Care (e.g., inpatient versus outpatient)
· b.	Reasonable Length of Stay for inpatient confinement
· c.	Actual Medical Necessity and appropriateness of the surgery or service being requested (e.g., does service require performance)
· d.	Necessity for the services of an Assistant Surgeon with each operative procedure analysis
· e.	Necessity for a proposed Preoperative hospital day
· f.	Necessity for a proposed 23-hour observation stay following outpatient surgery
· g. Patient resources for self-care
· h.	Other: Explain 						
Case Management
15. Does your firm have an ACTIVE case management program?
· a.	Yes
· b.	No 
16. What criteria are used to identify cases for medical case management? (Check only one)
· a.	No criteria used – we rely on our staff’s clinical experience
· b.	Internally developed written criteria: Please describe and provide sample (or example) of how that criteria would apply to certain situations
· c.	Other purchased case management criteria: Please describe and provide sample (or example) of how that criteria would apply to certain situations				
17. How and when are medical specialists involved in the case management process? Describe their credentials.
18. During case management, check which services your staff routinely performs on each case. (Check all that apply)
· a.	Redirect/channel patient/provider to correct in-network provider (e.g., non-network DME vendor redirected to use network DME vendor)
· b.	Negotiate discounts with non-network providers and vendors
· c.	Steer patient/physician to your firm’s contracted vendors in order to obtain discounts
· d.	Evaluate and alter the proposed treatment plan toward a more creative treatment plan
· e.	Staff functions as patient ombudsman to answer questions and reassure patient/family
· f.	Staff functions to gather information from the patient’s caregivers and physicians to report the status to the State or claims administrator
· g. Discuss community resources
· h.	Identify the case manager available for call in questions
· i.	Other: 	_____________________________________________
19. Indicate the frequency with which your firm sends summary data on case management services to the State. (Check only one)
· a.	No reports currently provided
· b.	Quarterly
· c.	Quarterly with an annual summary
· d.	Other:									
Quality Control of Utilization Management Services
20. Are you able to provide an annual summary of the State’s utilization statistics and your firm’s overall savings?
· a.	Yes
· b.	No
21. Are you able to provide quarterly and ad-hoc reports of the State’s utilization statistics and your firm’s overall savings?
· a.	Yes
· b.	No
Telemedicine and Tele-Behavioral Health
22. Are you able to provide telemedicine and tele-behavioral health services? If so, what types of services are available? 
· a.	Yes
· b.	No
Disease Management
For the purpose of the following questions, “disease management” will refer to a formal program designed to improve the health, outcomes & quality of life of enrollees, as well as lower costs through a systematic approach to actively manage a population of enrollees with a specific disease.
23. Complete the following grid regarding your organization’s FORMAL Disease Management (DM) program. (Check all that apply and complete columns b, c, d, and e)
	Check the programs currently in place.
	b) Number # of years program in place?
	c) Number of members currently participating in program?
	d) Performed by in-house Staff or Outsourced
	e) What data or results are you currently tracking to demonstrate the effectiveness of each Disease Management Program? (Attach added documentation as needed)

	a) Pre-Diabetes
	
	
	
	

	b) Adult-onset diabetes
	
	
	
	

	c) Hypertension
	
	
	
	

	d) Pediatric asthma
	
	
	
	

	e) Juvenile diabetes
	
	
	
	

	f) Epilepsy
	
	
	
	

	g) Rheumatoid arthritis
	
	
	
	

	h) Chronic obstructive pulmonary (COPD)
	
	
	
	

	i) Osteoarthritis
	
	
	
	

	j) Adult asthma
	
	
	
	

	k) Migraine headache
	
	
	
	

	l) Chronic renal failure
	
	
	
	

	m) Peptic Ulcer
	
	
	
	

	n) Major Depression
	
	
	
	

	o) Hemophilia
	
	
	
	

	p) Obesity
	
	
	
	

	q) Coronary Artery Disease
	
	
	
	

	r) High Risk Pregnancy
	
	
	
	

	s) Congestive Heart Failure (CHF)
	
	
	
	

	t) Lyme Disease
	
	
	
	

	u) Lower Back Pain
	
	
	
	

	v) Addiction/Substance Use Disorder
	
	
	
	


24. Indicate the items that your organization incorporates into each disease management program that you administer. (Check all that apply)
· a.	Protocol to assist physician in making efficient diagnosis.
· b.	Periodic calls to discuss enrollee’s compliance and health status.
· c.	Practice guidelines to develop consistency and effectiveness in treatment planning.
· d.	Provider survey on satisfaction with the disease management protocol.
· e.	Recommended drug therapy regimens.
· f.	Enrollee satisfaction with your disease management program.
· g.	Enrollee educational material (e.g., brochure, cards, video).
· h.	Patient’s return demonstration of techniques or equipment taught to them.
· i.	Outcome measures indicating the CLINICAL effectiveness of program.
· j.	Outcome measures indicating the COST effectiveness of program.
· k.	Other:	_______________________________________________


25. An enrollee’s entrance into your organization’s disease management programs is typically prompted by which of the following: (Check all that apply)
· a.	A referral from the enrollee’s physician.
· b.	Evidence of at least one bill (claim/encounter) for a pertinent diagnosis.
· c.	Enrollees identified via a health risk assessment survey.
· d.	Enrollees who have had at least one hospital admission for a pertinent diagnosis.
· e.	Enrollees identified by their prescription usage.
· f.	Enrollees with at least one ER visit for a pertinent diagnosis.
· g.	Enrollees who desire participation.
· h.	Other:	_____________________________________________________	
26. Do you receive any fees or revenue from any drug manufacturer, medical equipment provider, or other medical service provider or other third party for directly sponsoring or promoting any of your DM programs?
· a.	No
· b.	Yes, describe: __________________________________________
27. Indicate how and when you use a health assessment survey in the course of your disease management services.
28. Do you have the ability to collaborate with an outside disease management program?
D. Wellness Services
General
1. Please review the enclosed “Appendix F.18 - 2019-2020 Program Brochure.pdf” describing the State’s current wellness program and calendar (additional details can also be found on the State’s website) and confirm your ability to provide the communication, tracking, reporting, and administrative services necessary to support the program, as well as adopt any changes to the program. If there is an additional fee associated with providing these expected services, please indicate it in your response to the financial section of this RFP.
2. Do you offer cost savings or other performance guarantees for any health improvement/coaching services offered? What specific clinical quality measures would you include and what dollar amounts would you be willing to put at risk? Please describe what benchmarks you would use to measure annual performance.
3. Please provide any reporting and/or case studies documenting risk reduction and/or health improvement results for clients that engage in your wellness services.
4. Can you use the State’s medical and prescription drug data to determine case management, disease management and behavioral health support? If so, can you accept data from outside vendors (e.g., PBM) and provide predictive modeling?
5. Please describe how your organization will assist members with behavior change and healthy habit formation.


6. Would subject matter experts assist the State with health improvement and wellness integration efforts and join the State Health Benefit Program and Wellness Workgroup for meetings as needed? Please indicate if any additional fees would apply in your response to the Financial Section.
7. How do you ensure compliance with state and federal regulations related to wellness programs?
8. Can you administer the State’s current wellness program and ensure that it will comply with ACA, HIPAA, GINA, ADA, IRC, and any applicable federal and/or state law?
9. What services do you offer to combat addiction and assist those in recovery? Please describe how H.R.6, the Substance Use-Disorder Prevention that Promotes Opioid Recovery and Treatment (SUPPORT) for Patients and Communities Act will shape your current treatment and referral programs.
Scope of Work
10. Confirm your ability to provide each of the following wellness services that are currently available: 
a) Health Risk Assessment or Health Survey 
b) Biometric screenings
c) Telephonic health consultation (e.g., 24-hour NurseLine)
d) Online health and behavioral health consultation 
e) Data collection and reporting for incentive administration
f) Educational programs, resources, and learning modules on health topics (e.g., behavioral health and substance use, nutrition, diabetes, medical self-care)
g) Mobile apps, online tools, physical activity trackers, calculators, cost estimators, etc.
h) Quarterly and annual reporting available online
i) Communication/marketing materials and on-site (in person) programs promotion
j) Compliance standards applied to these programs
11. List industry accreditations or National certifications for each of the above programs you offer. 
12. Describe any other services or programs available for future consideration by the State including behavioral health assessments and health coaching. 
Program Design, Implementation, and Administration
13. Describe the engagement process from a user’s perspective. Is there a single sign on portal for users or multiple websites and points of entry? 
14. Describe your program(s) or targeted campaign(s) towards pre-diabetics, cardio-vascular disease, obesity, and any other specific programs you offer. 
15. Would you work collaboratively with disease management programs offered through the State’s prescription drug benefit manager?
16. Provide recommendations to improve and expand the State’s current wellness program. Please indicate any costs associated with your recommendations in your response to the Financial Section.
17. Are the incentive amounts appropriate based on your experience with other similar groups? 
18. What programs do you offer to enhance employee wellbeing (beyond physical health)? Please indicate if any additional fees would apply in your response to the Financial Section.
Health Risk Assessment or Health Survey
19. How do you administer and collect your Health Surveys?
20. Indicate if your Health Survey includes any academic institution collaboration.
21. How does your Health Survey guide member health management and risk reduction? 
22. Indicate the methods that a member can complete the Health Survey (e.g., paper, online, telephonic).
23. Describe how the disease management and wellness programs are integrated together for a member with co-morbidities (e.g., member with depression, obesity, and diabetes). 
Biometric Screening
24. Describe all biometric screening options you provide, with any requirements for each one. Can these be customized to the State’s needs and budget?
25. Can your company provide on-site and off-site biometric screenings? 
26. Are there any minimum participation requirements for a screening event? Any maximum participation limits?
27. Are biometric screenings available to all employees? Only health plan participants? Employees? Spouses? Dependents? 
28. Can your company use/integrate outside biometric data in lieu of your standard biometric screenings? 
29. How is scheduling, sign up, and day-of registration handled for screening events?
30. Do you electronically integrate the data you collect from a member at an onsite health screening program into the member’s Health Survey, health coaching program, incentive program, personal health record, etc.?
31. Does your screening include a behavioral health assessment?
Incentive/Participation Tracking
32. Confirm that your company will track participation and progress of participants according to the State’s Rewards for Wellness Program Calendar and indicate participant status (active in progress, active completed, new or terminated participants)? 
33. How do you validate member completion of preventive care screenings, wellness competitions, health education, health risk reduction, and outcomes based health screening results and/or improvements?
34. Can you accept participation data from the YMCA Diabetes Prevention Program (DPP) currently offered by the State?
35. Describe your appeals process as it relates to the wellness program.
Fees at Risk
36. Are you willing to put your administrative fee at risk relative to performance guarantees? If so, what percentage of the total administrative fee will you return to the State if savings estimates are not reached? How will savings be measured?
E. Innovative Provider Contracting
1. Submit a plan that demonstrates the offeror’s competency and capability to innovate using provider contracting and which is geared toward improving the quality, and efficiency of health care service delivery for state employees. Specifically, the offeror must address:
· Ideas for advancing the use of value-based payment models
· Incentivizing selection of high value providers
· Incentivizing the use of high value services should the state decide to propose future innovations in the state employee health program
F. Experience, Stability, and Contractual
Financial Condition of Organization
1. Indicate your most current claims-paying abilities as rated by:
	Independent Rating Agency
	Rating
	Date

	AM Best
	
	

	Standard & Poors
	
	

	Moody’s
	
	

	Fitch
	
	

	☐ Other ☐ Not Rated 
(select one and explain)
		
	
	


2. Indicate any reinsurance policies currently in place OR special cash reserves set aside, to continue paying claims on existing policies in the event your organization ceases to operate due to bankruptcy, liquidation or other factors. (Check only one)
· a. None
· b. Reinsurance is in effect or separate reserves are held to cover contractual services for the following number of days: _______ (Response valid only if # of days provided)
· c. Reserves as a percent of premium are 		% 
(Response valid only if % provided)
· d. Other: 											


3. The Vendor shall submit an audited financial statement for the most recent fiscal year in a separate sealed envelope; label the envelope “Confidential - Audited Financial Statement.” The financial information submitted shall remain confidential and shall not be public record. The financial information will be reviewed by the Bureau of Audits on a Pass/Fail basis. If the financial statement receives a “Pass” determination, the Vendor’s proposal will move to the Technical Review committee for further evaluation. If the financial statement receives a “Fail” determination, the Vendor’s proposal will be dropped from further consideration. 
4. What fidelity and surety insurance or bond coverage do you carry to protect your clients? Specifically describe the type and amount of the fidelity bond insuring your employees that would protect the State in the event of a loss. [Please provide copies of such policies].
a. Indicate your firm’s liability INSURANCE LIMIT with regard to errors, omission, negligence, and malpractice. 
b. Annual dollar limit per occurrence: 								
c. Provide name of insurer: 									
General Contract Provisions 

To expedite a process of finalizing the contract once a vendor is elected, please include your firm’s sample contract with your proposal for a self-funded arrangement.
5. Confirm you agree to include in your contract a hold harmless provision that indemnifies the State against liability that arises as the result of negligent acts, errors, omissions, fraud and other criminal acts committed by your officers, employees, and agents of the organization? (Check only one)
· a.	Yes
· b.	No
6. Confirm you agree to be bound by the terms of your proposal until a final contract is executed. 
7. Confirm the contract will provide the State or its designee the right to audit the performance of the plan and services provided.
8. Indicate what services, records and access will be made available to the State or its designee to audit at no additional charge.
9. Indicate frequency and notice requirements that are part of the right to audit provision.
10. Do you agree that all books, records, lists or names, plates, seals, passbooks, journals and ledgers and all data specific to this Program shall be the property of and shall be used exclusively for this plan at the direction of the State? (Check only one)
· a.	Yes
· b.	No
11. Are there any special contract provisions that you believe will need to be added to address liability or other issues specifically related to your performance of duties as the medical benefits administrator for the State of Rhode Island?

Termination Clauses 
12. At the outset of the contract with the State, how will coverage for treatment in progress be handled for the self-funded plan (if applicable)? (Check only one)
· a.	Will offer network discounts only if patient’s provider is in-network.
· b.	No network benefits apply if treatment is in progress on first day of eligibility. 
13. At the end of a client’s contract, treatment in progress for the self-funded plan is covered as follows: (Check only one)
· a.	Network discounts apply until completion of treatment.
· b.	Network discounts cease to apply.
G. References
Provide the name of your five (5) largest public sector (states, municipalities, etc.) clients for which you provide comparable services as requested in this RFP.

For these five clients, provide:
· Key contact’s name, including phone number and email address
· Address
· Number of active members (i.e., employees and dependents)
· Number of non-Medicare retiree members
· A summary of the services provided by the Bidder to the client 

The State reserves the right to contact any or all of these clients for references and consider the references’ experiences with the bidder in the score.

Additionally, the State also reserves the right to use itself as a reference and consider its own experiences with the bidder in the score. 
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